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Executive Summary 
 

This report investigates the standard of the research underlying the book Ψ{ǘŀǘŜ ƻŦ ¢ŜǊǊƻǊΩ by Thomas 

Suarez, published last year. 

The author makes a great play of the thoroughness of his research. The book was given glowing 

ŜƴŘƻǊǎŜƳŜƴǘǎ ōȅ tǊƻŦŜǎǎƻǊ Lƭŀƴ tŀǇǇŜ ŀƴŘ .ŀǊƻƴŜǎǎ WŜƴƴȅ ¢ƻƴƎŜΦ ¢ƘŜ ǇǳōƭƛǎƘŜǊΩǎ ǿŜōǎƛǘŜ ǎŀȅǎ ƻŦ 

State of TerrorΥ ΨThis book has been turned down by a number of publishers because of the sensitivity 

of its subject ƳŀǘǘŜǊΩ.  

Two researchers undertook this project, separating different elements of the workload to avoid 

duplication. The primary sources of the author were retraced, dozens of the files at the National 

Archives in Kew were examined and several of the key cited writings purchased and analysed. For 

both guidance and clarity, contact was made with academics and historians who specialise in the 

subject matter. 

The findings of this research were brutal. ¢ƘŜ ŘƛǎǘƻǊǘƛƻƴ ŎǊŜŀǘŜŘ ǿƛǘƘƛƴ ǘƘŜ ōƻƻƪΩǎ argument is 

drawn from every level of error imaginable. The author made basic historical research mistakes, 

such as an overreliance on, and disproportionate inclusion of, ideologically selected material. In 

addition - and more worryingly - the source material for the most part contradicts the authorΩs 

writing. And finally, there are several clear examples of such total distortion and inversion of 

meaning that it is difficult to conclude anything other than deliberate intent.  

The book is dripping with racial hatred against Jews. 

We conclude that in our opinion, this book is an antisemitic fraud. We do not use that phrase 

lightly.  

Worryingly, the author is about to embark on a tour of the United States. He has recently finished 

peddling this hatred in Scotland. He has spoken at universities in the United Kingdom. The book was 

honoured with a launch inside a meeting room in the House of Lords.  

This raises important questions that must be addressed. How is it that such a badly put together 

distortion, riddled with historical inaccuracy, misquotes and racial hatred, is being welcomed by any 

part of our society? Just a rudimentary check brought to light unacceptable errors that warranted 

further investigation. The additional factcheck uncovered an unsupportable pyramid of fictions. Has 

truth lost all meaning? How can a University Professor endorse such a book?  

We are sure that the sheer scale of the shoddy research and blatant manipulations described in this 

report will shock those who read it. Perhaps almost as much as it shocked those who uncovered it. 

David Collier and Jonathan Hoffman  
4 September 2017 
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1: Introduction 
 

Ψ{ǘŀǘŜ ƻŦ ¢ŜǊǊƻǊΩ by Thomas Suarez was published in August 2016 by Skyscraper Publications. 

Skyscraper Publications is owned by Karl SabbaghΦ Ψ{ǘŀǘŜ ƻŦ ¢ŜǊǊƻǊΩ was launched at an event at the 

Mosaic Rooms, with follow up events at the House of Lords and SOAS University in London.1 

In his presentation of his book at public meetings, Suarez makes a big play of the thoroughness of his 

ǊŜǎŜŀǊŎƘΥ CƛǾŜ ȅŜŀǊǎ ƻŦ ǿƻǊƪΣ ǊŜŀŘƛƴƎ пол ŦƛƭŜǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ¦YΩǎ bŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ !ǊŎƘƛǾŜǎΤ сул ŜƴŘƴƻǘŜǎ ƛƴ сф 

pages and 124 references in his bibliography.  

Some book reviews were glowing, with anti-Israel activist site Mondoweiss calling it Ψa substantial 

work of historical scholarshipΩ.2 Publishers Weekly suggested Suarez Ψpassionately and meticulously 

exposes the terrorism committed by Zionist groupsΩΦ3 

The Suarez book Ψ{ǘŀǘŜ ƻŦ ¢ŜǊǊƻǊΩ is built on nine pillars. Some of these are truly absurd: 

¶ #1. That the book was built on diligent research 

¶ #2. That Zionist terror was the reason for Partition  

¶ #3. That Zionist actions were part of a Ψmaster planΩ, rather than a reaction to events 

¶ #4. That Zionists and Jews were two different groups, with little or no intersection 

¶ #5. That Zionists had no respect for human life, least of all that of Jews 

¶ #6. That between 1933 & 1949, the Jews of Europe had somewhere to go, other than 

Palestine 

¶ #7. That the British were impartial observers 

¶ #8. That 1948 was not a civil war, but rather Zionist aggressors picking a fight with 

peaceful Arabs 

¶ #9. That the Hagana (always*) secretly supported the actions of the Irgun (and Stern*) 4. 

To anyone with a grounded knowledge of the Mandate period, it was immediately obvious that 

there were issues with the historicity detailed in the book. Both authors of this study quickly 

identified several key problems.5  

However, random criticism over specific events plays into the hands of authors of revisionist 

material, precisely because it permits deflection and does not seriously focus on the central issue: 

the way primary source material has been carefully selected or distorted.  As Benny Morris suggests 

in his dissection of Iƭŀƴ tŀǇǇŜ ΨThose who falsify history routinely take the path of omission. They 

ignore crucial facts and important pieces of evidence while cherry-picking from the documentation to 

prove a case.Ω6 

                                                             
1 See http://www.skyscraperpublications.com/news 
2 http://mondoweiss.net/2016/10/terror-thomas-suarez/ 
3 https://www.publishersweekly.com/978-1-56656-068-9 
4 9ŘƛǘŜŘ ŦǊƻƳ ƻǊƛƎƛƴŀƭ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ тκфκмтΦ {ǳŀǊŜȊΩǎ ƛƴǘŜƴǘƛƻƴ ƛǎ ǘƻ ŜǊŀǎŜ ǘƘŜ ƛŘŜƻƭƻƎƛŎŀƭ ŘƛŦŦŜǊŜƴŎŜǎ ōŜǘǿŜŜƴ the 
groups and blur time periods. Some (esp. post-1945) Hagana / Irgun cooperation is acknowledged  
5 Hoffman http://blogs.timesofisrael.com/the-protocols-of-the-elders-of-soas-pal-soc/ and Collier 
http://david-collier.com/soas-palestine-society-evil-zionists-control-world/ Hoffman followed up with a 
detailed critique on Amazon https://www.amazon.co.uk/gp/customer-
reviews/R17GPRZ5J8ZZYL/ref=cm_cr_getr_d_rvw_ttl?ie=UTF8&ASIN=191107203X 
6 See Morris discussing falsification of history https://newrepublic.com/article/85344/ilan-pappe-sloppy-
dishonest-historian 



 

  

DAVID COLLIER, JONATHAN HOFFMAN SEPT 2017 5 

 

A REPORT ON A MODERN ANTISEMITIC FRAUD. RESEARCH BY DAVID COLLIER AND JONATHAN HOFFMAN 

For this reason we concluded that a more thorough study into the book was necessary, with the 

intention of walking in SuarezΩǎ footsteps and checking the source material he accessed. The aim of 

the research was to verify the sources claimed as the foundations of the central nine pillars. The 

work was split between the two researchers, both to increase the number of source files accessed, 

and to avoid duplication.  

There are nearly 700 endnotes.  A sample selection technique developed by auditors was used, 

relying on the likelihood that the probity of the whole can be inferred from a sufficiently large 

sample. The selected sample was not random. To test the accuracy of the claims in the book, the 

focus was on the most negative of SuarezΩǎ ŦƛƴŘƛƴƎǎ - for example: 

 

ϝ ǘƘŜ ŎƭŀƛƳ ǘƘŀǘ ¦b wŜǎƻƭǳǘƛƻƴ мум ǿŀǎ ŀ ΨscamΩ ōŜŎŀǳǎŜ Ψno Israeli leader had any intention of 

honouring PartitionΩΤ  

* the claim that Jewish orphans in post-war Europe were kidnapped by Zionists; 

* the claim that Zionist leaders sabotaged plans to create a Safe Haven outside Palestine for Jewish 

Displaced Persons; 

* the claim that that Israel destroyed the Iraqi Jewish community; 

 

In effect, the sample specifically attacked the underlying pillars of the Suarez book. In addition, the 

test was the research accuracy rather than the details of individual incidents. Had we done the 

latter, Suarez would probably welcome an attack that would focus on events. This could take the 

discussion down a Ψrabbit holeΩ where an individual Zionist action could become an argument over 

subjective opinion. This would be a pure diversion.  It is the standard of research and underlying 

premise that is the focus of our work.  

 

Key issues within the book were identified. The National archives at Kew were then accessed to 

check the use of these sources. Several key works cited in the State of Terror were also purchased 

for this research. 

 

This paper has three aims:   

i. It assesses whether Suarez has drawn the correct message from the source 

documents7; 

ii. It identifies examples of facts in the source documents being ignored, if they do not 

suit his argument.8 

iii. It identifies examples of assertions unsupported by source material. 

(The images in this paper are reproduced with the permission of the National Archives) 

                                                             
7 Suarez has placed extracts from some of his archival source documents online at paldocs.net. In addition, we 
accessed dozens of archive files in several visits to the National Archives at Kew. 
8 Lƴ ŀ ǊŜǾƛŜǿ ƻŦ Lƭŀƴ tŀǇǇŜΩǎ ǿƻǊƪΣ .Ŝƴƴȅ aƻǊǊƛǎ ŎƭŀƛƳǎ ǘƘŀǘ ΨǘƘƻǎŜ ǿƘƻ ŦŀƭǎƛŦȅ ƘƛǎǘƻǊȅ ǊƻǳǘƛƴŜƭȅ ǘŀƪŜ ǘƘŜ ǇŀǘƘ ƻŦ 
omission. They ignore crucial facts and important pieces of evidence while cherry-picking from the 
documentation to prove a case.Ω {ŜŜ Ψ[ƛŀǊ ŀǎ IŜǊƻΩ, Benny Morris in New Republic, 17 March 2011 
https://newrepublic.com/article/85344/ilan-pappe-sloppy-dishonest-historian 
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2: The First Quote 
 

As a lead into the introduction (page 7), Suarez uses a quote that draws parallels between Jewish 

action and that of the Nazis: ΨA Nazi is a Nazi he be a Jew or otherwiseΩ, it begins. 

Suarez ǎǘŀǘŜǎ ǘƘŜ ǉǳƻǘŜ ƛǎ ŦǊƻƳ ŀ Ψprotest by the Jewish socialist group Hashomer Hatzair, 13th March 

1946, at a secret meeting of the HaganaΩ. 

It is referenced with endnote #2. Endnote #2 (page 339) gives two sources for the quote - both are in 

the National Archives at Kew: KV 5/34, 112a and όΨǎŜŜ alǎƻΩ Suarez instructs) FO 371/68504, 17-18. 

We accessed both these files. It took some time to find the quote. The FO document is about a 

Parliamentary Question in 1948, immediately after - and concerned with - the events of Deir Yassin. 

Pages 17 and 18 were both read. However, these have nothing to do with any meeting in 1946; the 

quote appears to be wrongly referenced. 

KV 5/34 only had documents numbered up to Ψ90Ω, so the Ψ112aΩ page reference was clearly wrong. It 

meant working through the documents individually to find the correct one. It was eventually found -  

the correct document number was 84a, dated 6 April 1946. Lǘ ƘŀŘ ŀ ǎŜǇŀǊŀǘŜ ƳŀǊƪƛƴƎ ƻŦ ΨммнŀΩ ǘƘŀǘ 

is unconnected to the present filing system (hence the mistake in the Suarez book). It begins thus: 

ΨThe following is an unconfirmed report of a Hagana meeting which is alleged to have taken place in 

aƻƭŜŘŜǘ ƻƴ моκоκмфпсΩ    

The quote then appears within this unconfirmed report at the bottom of the second page. 

 

Note how the letter begins with the wŀǊƴƛƴƎ ƛǘ ƛǎ ΨǳƴŎƻƴŦƛǊƳŜŘΩΦ Lǘ ǿƻǳƭŘ ōŜ ŘƛŦŦƛŎǳƭǘ ǘƻ ōƻǘƘ ǊŜŀŘ ǘƘŜ ƭŜǘǘŜǊ ŀƴŘ Ŧŀƛƭ ǘƻ 
acknowledge this aspect of it. Image - The National Archives UK KV 5/34 

Thus, Suarez sets the tone for the rest of the book. To quote from an unconfirmed report without 

clearly identifying it as such, is at best academically sloppy and at worst downright deceitful.  It is 

clearly misleading, and presents something that may not have happened as fact, because the author 

would prefer it to be true.  

This type of selective distortion recurs throughout. 
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3: The Very First Archive Listing 

 
Towards the back of the book (page 335), as part of his sources, Suarez has four pages of files from 

the National Archives that he claims to have accessed. It is a daunting list of 430 files (there will be 

more on this later). The very first archive file mentioned is ADM 116/3690. It is used in five separate 

endnotes (#86, #92, #94, #96 and #387).  We called up the file to check whether SuarezΩǎ ŎƭŀƛƳǎ ŦƻǊ 

it as evidence for his statements were justified.  

Endnotes #92, #94 and #96 principally relate to pages 53-54 of the Suarez book. The file, ADM 

116/3690, is an Admiralty file containing reports of proceedings of HMS REPULSE and HMS MALAYA, 

that were stationed at Haifa. The events are from 1938.  The backdrop is the growing desperation of 

Jews fleeing Europe and several years of Arab violence)9. 

The file has been stripped of historical context by Suarez and the content misrepresented. 

Whether deliberately or due to misunderstanding of the historical setting, Suarez seeks to convey an 

image of Zionist violence against a near-passive Arab community.  

Thus, the British diary entries become distorted. For example, Suarez suggests (page 54) that 

immediately following an Irgun attack on a market, the British increased their presence and imposed 

ŀ ŎǳǊŦŜǿ Ψto prevent further attacksΩ. The clear inference here is that the British needed to protect 

Arab civilians. But the document makes clear the real reason for the imposition of the curfew: 

Ψto check measures of retaliation which were feared from the ArabsΩ. 

This truth has been conveniently erased from history by Suarez. In the pages that follow of the file 

document are these entries: 

¶ That a barbed wire fence was being built because Arab gangs were smuggling weapons; 

¶ That on Friday 8 July there were six shooting incidents against Jews; 

¶ That in Haifa on the 8 July one Jew was stabbed, and there were two shooting incidents 

against Jews. Also, three bombs were thrown, one at a Jewish bus, one damage unknown 

and one at another bus killing four Jews; 

¶ On the 12 July, that a curfew needed to be imposed on Balad Ash Sheikh because residents 

had ambushed a Jewish bus; 

¶ Also on 12 July, several cases of arson were reported. In all cases it was suspected arson of 

Jewish property. And two Jews were stabbed. 

There is no need to list dozens of further relevant entries. Suarez totally sidesteps persistent Arab 

violence against Jews. Perhaps the entry of the 10 August best contextualises the situation: 

ΨIn Haifa things continued quiet. Incidents go on occurring that in England would be the subject of 

headlines in the papers, but here they have come to be regarded as a matter of courseΦΩ 

                                                             
9 For examples of Arab 1930s violence, see the 1933 Palestine Riots, the 1931-мфор ΨŀǊƳŜŘ ǎǘǊǳƎƎƭŜΩ ƻŦ Izz ad-
Din al-Qassam and the 1936-мфоф Ψ!Ǌŀō wŜōŜƭƭƛƻƴΩΦ aƻǎǘ ŎƻƳǇǊŜƘŜƴǎƛǾŜ ǿƻǊƪǎ ƻƴ мфолǎ tŀƭŜǎǘƛƴŜ ŘƛǎŎǳǎǎ 
these events. For reading see eg Benny Morris, Righteous Victims: A History of the Arab-Israeli Conflict, 1881-
1999 (pages 121-160) 
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Throughout the document there is also constant talk of Arab gangs descending from the hills, 

supplied by weapons they are smuggling across the border. Many local Arab villages were suspected 

of violence against the British and Jews. 

This comment was also ignored by Suarez (entry 31 July) 

ΨIf therefore on any given day, the Arabs contrive to let off steam by a number of stonings, bomb 

throwings and so on, without getting tit-for-tat, the atmosphere is likely to be easier, than if they are 

ǘƘŜƳǎŜƭǾŜǎ ǘƘŜ ǾƛŎǘƛƳǎΩ. 

Proactive Arab violence and an inference that Arabs, rather than Jews were the community most 
likely to perpetuate violence ς which entirely negates the overarching theme of his book; namely, 
that the Jews were almost always the aggressors.  

This is an extract from the ADM 116/3690 file.  It is a ƭƛǎǘ ƻŦ ƛƴŎƛŘŜƴǘǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘŜŘ ŀǎ Ψhaving occurred 
over the whole of Palestine on Friday 8th July (1938)Ω: 

 

Between page 53 and 55 of his book, Suarez lists events that took place between 6 and 26 July 1938 
in Haifa. It would be difficult for a historian to read these extracts, write two whole pages about 
violent events in Haifa, and miss completely (by accident) all the Arab attacks on Jews. Suarez is 
blind to all of them. The next extract confirms that the curfew that Suarez implies is in place to stop 
further Jewish attacks, is explicitly mentioned as being related to fears of Arab retaliation.     
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4: Revising History: The Ben Gurion Quote 
 

On page 28 Suarez says that Ben Gurion argued thus:  

ΨRather than seeing all the Jewish children in Germany escape to England, it was better that half of 

them should be slaughtered by the Nazis in order to get the surviving half to be settlers in his colonial 

ǇǊƻƧŜŎǘΩ.  

Endnote #24 has the precise quote (December 7, 1938). It is a hugely offensive canard, as 

camera.org has explained10 ς deriving from taking a single quote out of context and ignoring other 

comments made by Ben Gurion that directly contradict this interpretation.  

Most importantly in December 1938 Ben Gurion did not know about the impending Holocaust that 

was to come.  He did not know that Jewish children who could not escape from Occupied Europe 

would lose their lives. .Ŝƴ DǳǊƛƻƴ ǳǎŜŘ ǘƘŜ ǿƻǊŘ ΨǎŀǾŜΩ, but to interpret this as the saving of life is 

entirely wrong.  

From a Zionist perspective presuming that Jewish persecution would follow Jewish communities 

anywhere they settled ƻǳǘǎƛŘŜ ƻŦ ΨLǎǊŀŜƭΩΣ .Ŝƴ DǳǊƛƻƴ ǿƻǳƭŘ ǇǊƻōŀōƭȅ ōŜ ǎǳƎƎŜǎǘƛƴƎ ǘƘŀǘ ƛǘ ǿƻǳƭŘ ōŜ 

better to bring half to safety in Israel, than replace one diaspora persecution with a temporary 

respite in another diaspora community. Presumably he meant temporarily ΨǎŀǾƛƴƎ ŦǊƻƳ ǇŜǊǎŜŎǳǘƛƻƴΩ 

ƻǊ ΨŦǊƻƳ ŀƴǘƛǎŜƳƛǘƛǎƳΩΦ Lǘ ǎƘƻǳƭŘ ŀƭǎƻ ōŜ ǊŜƳŜƳōŜǊŜŘ ƛƴ мфоуΣ .Ǌƛǘŀƛƴ itself was hardly clear of fascist 

movements itself.11  

Yet Suarez frames the canard by stating that in July 1938 άNazi intentions were already terrifyingly 

clearέ (bottom of page 27). This is an historically incorrect statement that has absolutely no 

academic merit. Nobody knew at that time what was about to happen.  In July 1938, even the Nazis 

ŘƛŘƴΩǘ ƪƴƻǿ ǿƘŜǊŜ ǘƘŜƛǊ ŀŎǘƛƻƴǎ ǿƻǳƭŘ ƭŜŀŘ ǘƘŜƳΦ TƘŜ ΨCƛƴŀƭ {ƻƭǳǘƛƻƴΩ ŘƛŘ ƴƻǘ ōŜƎƛƴ ǳƴǘƛƭ WǳƴŜ 

194112. It was only in November 1942 that the Zionist leadership became aware of the systematic 

slaughter of Jews13. To falsely endow Ben Gurion with this foresight, in order mendaciously to 

claim that he was willing to let Jewish children be slaughtered, is beyond revolting.  

This is a clear example of Suarez rewriting history to facilitate the demonisation of Zionism (as 

Suarez understands it).  It perfectly encapsulates the decontextualisation of the historical record that 

is a hallmark throughout the book. 

  

                                                             
10 http://www.camera.org/index.asp?x_context=55&x_article=1566 
11 https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/British_Union_of_Fascists 
12 https://www.ushmm.org/wlc/en/article.php?ModuleId=10005151 
13 David Cesarani ed, Final Solution (page 271) 
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5: UN Resolution 181, 1947-1948 and the Civil War 
 

UN Resolution 181 was the General Assembly resolution in 1947 which partitioned the area of 

Palestine between the Jews and the Arabs.  

 

On page 13 Suarez writes ΨUN Resolution 181 cŀƴ ŦŀƛǊƭȅ ōŜ ŘŜǎŎǊƛōŜŘ ŀǎ ŀ ǎŎŀƳ ΧΦΦ Both British and 

US intelligence warned that no Israeli leader ΧΦ ƘŀŘ ŀƴȅ ƛƴǘŜƴǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ƘƻƴƻǳǊƛƴƎ tŀǊǘƛǘƛƻƴΩ 

Suarez does this because even though history records Zionist acceptance of 181, and Arab 

rejection, he needs to lay the entire blame for the upcoming conflict (and the result of the conflict) 

on the Zionists (his Pillars #2 and #8, see page 4 above). 

 

/!. мнфκнм όƘƛǎ ǎƻǳǊŎŜ ŘƻŎǳƳŜƴǘύ ŘƻŜǎ bh¢ ǎƘƻǿ ǘƘŀǘ Ψno Israeli leader had any intention of 

honouring PartitionΩΦ  Lǘ ƛǎ ŀ мфпт /ŀōƛƴŜǘ ǇŀǇŜǊ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ¦b{/ht ǇǊƻǇƻǎŀƭǎΦ  Lǘ ǎǳƎƎŜǎǘǎ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜǊŜ 

ǿƻǳƭŘ ōŜ ŎƛǾƛƭ ŘƛǎƻōŜŘƛŜƴŎŜ όΨWŜǿƛǎƘ ǘŜǊǊƻǊƛǎƳΩ) if Partition did not propose a viable Jewish-majority 

State.   

The bias of the writer can be seen by the fŀŎǘ ǘƘŀǘ ƘŜ ǊŜŦŜǊǎ ǘƻ ΨǘƘŜ ƛƴƧǳǎǘƛŎŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘ ǇƭŀƴΩ.  

WO 261/571 is cited by Suarez as evidence (in paldocs.net but not in the book) that Ψthe British and 

the Americans knew with certainty that the Palestinians would not get the state they were promiǎŜŘΩ.   

What it actually shows is the opposition felt by !ōŘǳƭƭŀƘ ƻŦ ¢ǊŀƴǎƧƻǊŘŀƴ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ aǳŦǘƛΩǎ proposal for a 

Palestinian government in exile. FO 371/68648 (cited as evidence for the above assertion in 

paldocs.net but not in the book) similarly describes !ōŘǳƭƭŀƘΩǎ ǇƻǎǎƛōƭŜ ƛƴǘŜƴǘƛƻƴǎΦ  Note that neither 

of these two documents suggests any intention by the Jewish leaders to stand in the way of an Arab 

State resulting from Partition ς contrary to SuarezΩǎ ŀǎǎŜǊǘƛƻƴ όin paldocs.net) that the Zionists were 

stǊƛƪƛƴƎ ŀ ΨŘŜŀƭΩ ǿƛǘƘ !ōŘǳƭƭŀƘΦ 

In further evidence of sloppiness or dishonesty, Suarez uses half quotes which distort the message 

entirely. Witness his use (page 242, no endnote) of the quote from WO 261/571: ΨIt does not appear 

that Arab Palestine will be an entityΩ 

Suarez goes on to mention (page 242) that the British were already aware that the Jews were 

ΨŎƻƭƭŀōƻǊŀǘƛƴƎΩ ǿƛǘƘ !ōŘǳƭƭŀƘ ƻŦ WƻǊŘŀƴΦ But what the report in WO 261/571 actually said was this: 

 

In other words the reason that Palestine may not be an ΨentityΩ is because the Arabs, who had 

vowed to destroy the Jewish state, would simply divide up the spoils.  
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Not only is this nothing to do with the Zionists, but in this scenario, it was the intention of the Arab 

states to divide the Jewish area up amongst themselves too. 

 

Efraim Karsh called it the Arab 'scramble for Palestine'14, when discussing the same quote. Karsh -  

using the same documents in historical context - surmised that the Arabs simply did not view 

Palestine as a separate entity but rather intended to divide all the lands - including any Jewish 

territory they captured - amongst invading Arab forces.  This is the difference between the way a 

document is used by a historian and the way a half-quote is abused by a propagandist.  

Furthermore, given the Arab declaration to destroy the Jewish state, it is odd that Suarez describes 

Zionist attempts to negotiate with Abdullah, who had control of the Jordanian Legion - the most 

powerful of the Arab nationsΩ ŀǊƳƛŜǎ - in deceptive terms.15 Surely trying to stave off conflict and 

annihilation would have been the natural thing for the Jews to do.  Suarez both pushes the idea that 

the Zionists sought all the lands of the Jordan whilst at the same time suggesting that they were 

ΨŎƻƭƭŀōƻǊŀǘƛƴƎΩ ǿƛǘƘ WƻǊŘŀƴ to avoid conflict.  They could not have done both. These inconsistent 

theories recur throughout the book, with Suarez unscrupulously picking whichever of the 

contradictory arguments best supports the particular message he is trying to convey at the time.  

FO 371/80273 is also cited to show that the Zionists were minded to ignore Resolution 181 and try 

ǘƻ άset up a Jewish state in all of Palestine and TransjordanέΦ  It shows nothing of the kind. It simply 

reports the perception of a British diplomat in Amman. Writing in early 1950, s/he says that - at the 

end of the Mandate - it was generally assumed that Transjordan would absorb the Eastern part of 

Ψ!Ǌŀō tŀƭŜǎǘƛƴŜΩΤ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘƛǎ ǿŀǎ ǊŜǎŜƴǘŜŘ ōȅ ǎƻƳŜ !ǊŀōǎΤ ōǳǘ ǘƘŀǘ Ƴŀƴȅ !Ǌŀōǎ ǿŜǊŜ ƳƻǾƛƴƎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜƛǊ 

own volition to Amman.  

 

FCO 141/14286 is also relevant to the civil conflict. The file contains weekly intelligence reports from 

early 1948. Suarez uses it in no fewer than 14 endnotes, grabbing at details of violent Jewish activity. 

But his choice of material is highly selective.  On page 250, Suarez says (as of the beginning of 

February 1948): 

ΨThere were to be sure, no Arab armies in Palestine and there would not be for another three and a 

ƘŀƭŦ ƳƻƴǘƘǎΩΦ   

But the following are extracts from FCO 141/14286: 

December 1947: 

¶ ΨThe Arabs are leaving the country with their families in considerable numbers and there is an 

exodus from the mixed towns to the rural areas. The Jewish ǇǳōƭƛŎ ƛǎ ǎŎŀǊŎŜƭȅ ƭŜǎǎ ƴŜǊǾƻǳǎΩ. 

January and February 1948 

¶ ¢Ƙŀǘ ƻƴ ǘƻǇ ƻŦ Ψwidespread assaults on WŜǿǎ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜΩ, weekly intelligence reports began to 

detail armed forces entering the Mandate area. They then state that ǘƘŜ ŀǊǊƛǾŀƭ ƻŦ ΨCŀǿȊƛ ŀƭ-

vǳǿŀƪƧƛΩ όƘŜŀŘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ !Ǌŀō [ƛōŜǊŀǘƛƻƴ !ǊƳȅ) ƘŀŘ ΨŎƻƳǇƭƛŎŀǘŜŘ ƳŀǘǘŜǊǎΩ; 

                                                             
14 Efraim Karsh, Islamic Imperialism - A History (section on the Contemporary Middle East) 
15 Lƭŀƴ tŀǇǇŜ ǊŜŦŜǊǎ ǘƻ ǘƘŜƳ ŀǎ ΨǘƘŜ ǎǘǊƻƴƎŜǎǘ ŀǊƳȅ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ !Ǌŀō ǿƻǊƭŘΩ (The Ethnic Cleansing of 
Palestine, page 44) 
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¶ That a second party of 700 men entered Palestine at the end of January; 

¶ That intelligence estimates were that ǘƘŜ WŜǿǎ ǿŜǊŜ Ψunlikely to be able to hold their own 

outside of their defence perimetersΩ. 

¶ That at least 1400 volunteer Arab fighters were based in the Samaria district alone; 

¶ That in February there was a steady influx of mainly Syrian and Lebanese fighters. And one 

single incursion was said to involve between 1,000 - 2,000 fighters; 

¶ Telegram 272 (23 February 1948) listed the total number of fighters believed to have 

crossed the border: Galilee 1000, Haifa 200-300, Samaria 3-4,000, Jerusalem 500-800 

(estimate), Jaffa 200, Gaza 100.  

March 1948 (telegram 783) 

¶ ΨIt is becoming increasingly apparent that the Yishuv and its leaders are deeply worried about 

the future. The intensification of Arab attacks on communications and particularly the failure 

of the Kfar Etzion convoy has brought home the precarious position of Jewish communities 

both great and small which are dependent on supply lines running through Arab controlled 

country.Ω 

And Suarez certainly ignored this telegram in April (number 937, 30 April 1948) 

¶ ΨThe Arabs of the large towns, who have borne the brunt of recent Jewish offensive action 

are much more bitter against the British.  Fear breeds recrimination and they are perhaps 

willfully blind to the fact that for months past, they and their press have clamoured for the 

entry of the foreign Arab guerilla bands, which having successful stirred up the Jews are now 

proving quite unable to protect the local Arabs from the Jewish reaction.Ω   

¶ ΨLƴ ǘƘŜƛǊ ƘŜŀǊǘǎΣ ǘƘŜȅ Ƴǳǎǘ ǊŜŀƭƛǎŜ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜƛǊ ƳǳŎƘ ǾŀǳƴǘŜŘ Ψ[ƛōŜǊŀǘƛƻƴ !ǊƳȅΩ ƛǎ ǇƻƻǊƭȅ 

ŜǉǳƛǇǇŜŘ ŀƴŘ ōŀŘƭȅ ƭŜŘΧ ¢ƘŜȅ ŦŜŜƭ ǘƘŜƛǊ ƳƻƴŜǘŀǊȅ ǎǳōǎŎǊƛǇǘƛƻƴǎ ƘŀǾŜ ōŜŜƴ ǎǉǳŀƴŘŜǊŜŘ ŀƴŘ 

they themselves misled.  They must fix the blame on someone and who more deserving than 

the British.Ω 

¶ ΨMany of their so-called leaders are fleeing the country and the Effendi class generally do not 

seem ashamed of watching the contest from the sidelines.Ω  

 

 

Telegram 252, Weekly Intelligence Appreciation, 7/2/1948. Discussing a second guerilla party of 700 who had entered 
Palestine. This extract is from file CO 141/14284. This file was selectively used by Suarez in 15 separate endnotes.  

Other files, connected to the Arab state discussions, were also not accessed by Suarez. Perhaps he 

was not interested in looking at files that might bring context to Jewish activity. But these files would 
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be crucial in deciding whether the Arab threats were genuine. Files FO 371/68364 FO 371/68365 and 

FO 371/68366 all detail troop movements, the infiltration by irregular forces and the intentions of 

the Arab states in the period from Partition to invasion.  None of this was relevant to the type of 

picture it seems Suarez deliberately set out to portray.   

In FO 371/68365 for example, there are several telegrams about Arab irregular troop movements. 

There are also reports of an interview with King Abdullah in early January 1948, in which he was 

informed by the British that 

Ψin most incidŜƴǘǎΣ !Ǌŀōǎ ǿŜǊŜ ǘƘŜ ŀƎƎǊŜǎǎƻǊǎΩ 

There is also a telegram from Amman (dated 15 January 1948) already mentioning numerous towns 

ƻŦ ¢ǊŀƴǎƧƻǊŘŀƴ ōŜƛƴƎ ΨŎǊƻǿŘŜŘ ǿƛǘƘ ǊŜŦǳƎŜŜǎΩ.  Evidence of mass voluntary Arab flight three months 

ōŜŦƻǊŜ ǘƘŜ ƛƳǇƭŜƳŜƴǘŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ Ψtƭŀƴ 5ŀƭŜǘΩΦ 

In further support of the Zionist historical position, Sir Alexander Cunningham sent a telegram on 31 

January 1948 regarding the Arab irregular forces that had entered the Mandate area. He pointed out 

that 

Ψonce these parties are in Palestine, they are very difficult to dŜŀƭ ǿƛǘƘ ǿƛǘƘƻǳǘ ŀǊƳŜŘ ŎƻƴŦƭƛŎǘΦΩ 

That armed conflict of course, was being forced on the Jews who were finding it more difficult to 

bring supplies to the towns and kibbutzim as the convoys were attacked with increasing success.  

As Suarez almost entirely whitewashes Arab violence from the pages of history, he makes another 

ŜǊǊƻǊ ǘƘŀǘ ƘƛƎƘƭƛƎƘǘǎ ǘƘŜ ōƭŀǘŀƴǘ ōƛŀǎ ŀƴŘ ǎƘƻŘŘȅ ǊŜǎŜŀǊŎƘ ōŜƘƛƴŘ Ψ{ǘŀǘŜ ƻŦ ¢ŜǊǊƻǊΩ (contrary to 

SuaǊŜȊΩǎ tƛƭƭŀǊ Ім, see page 4 above). 

On page 246, Suarez ŘŜŀƭǎ ǿƛǘƘ ŜǾŜƴǘǎ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƻƻƪ ǇƭŀŎŜ ƻƴ bŜǿ ¸ŜŀǊΩǎ 9ǾŜ мфпт ŀǘ .ŜƭŀŘ 9sh Sheikh. 

To set the scene, he disassociates this from the events of the Irgun bombing and massacre of Jewish 

workers at the refinery on 30 December.  Almost all sources confirm the connection between the 

massacre of Jews in Haifa and the motivation for this revenge attack. The files he references draw 

the connection, Benny Morris draws the connection ς but Suarez chooses not to mention it.16  But it 

gets worse. 

Suarez records the events from the National Archive WO 275/64 and details the action in a 21 line 

endnote #491 (page офнύΦ  Lƴ ǘƘŜ ŜƴŘƴƻǘŜΣ ƘŜ ǘƘŜƴ ƛƴǎǘǊǳŎǘǎ ǊŜŀŘŜǊǎ ǘƻ ƭƻƻƪ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ ΨŘŜǘŀƛƭŜŘ ǊŜŎƻǊŘΩ 

of events such as this in both CO 537/3855 and WO261/573. 

Suarez records that ΨǘƘŜ WŜǿƛǎƘ ŀƎŜƴŎȅΩǎ Ƴƛƭƛǘƛŀ ƳŀǎǎŀŎǊŜŘ ǎƛȄǘȅ tŀƭŜǎǘƛƴƛŀƴǎ ƛƴ .ŜƭŀŘ ŜǎƘ {ƘŜƛkh, 

inŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ Ƴŀƴȅ ǿƻƳŜƴ ŀƴŘ ŎƘƛƭŘǊŜƴΩ. 

However all but one of the files Suarez cites suggest that only fourteen to seventeen people died at 

Belad esh Sheikh. However Suarez chose to ignore these sources, instead going with Ilan Pappe and 

claiming that sixty died, even though Pappe is not the primary source for the research and the 

primary source (Benny Morris - see The Birth of the Palestine Refugee Problem and The Birth of the 

Palestine Refugee Problem Revisited) is far less certain about the figure.  It appears that Suarez 

simply picked the highest casualty count available. 

                                                             
16 Morris suggests the Belad esh Sheikh attack was because the Hagana could not let the refinery massacre go 
unpunished (Morris, 1948 (page 103))  



 

  

DAVID COLLIER, JONATHAN HOFFMAN SEPT 2017 14 

 

A REPORT ON A MODERN ANTISEMITIC FRAUD. RESEARCH BY DAVID COLLIER AND JONATHAN HOFFMAN 

The final file referenced by Suarez (CO 537/3855) is the Criminal Investigation Department reports. 

The file provides the most accurate account available of the casualty count, listing only nine deaths, 

and even has a list of the names of all the dead and injured with their ages. It even updated the 

casualty count, as severely injured people died.  There is no other source as well-informed or 

accurate as this. 

If Suarez were a true researcher, or a historian searching for the truth, he would have realised he 

ƘŀŘ ΨŘƛǎŎƻǾŜǊŜŘΩ ƴƻǘ Ƨǳǎǘ ŀ ŘƛǎŎǊŜǇŀƴŎȅ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ ƘƛǎǘƻǊƛŎŀƭ ǊŜŎƻǊŘΣ ōǳǘ ǿƘŀǘ ŀǇǇŜŀǊǎ ǘƻ ōŜ ŀ ǎǳǇŜǊƛƻǊ 

contemporary document. Perhaps because the account in CO 537/3855 ƴŜƎŀǘŜǎ ǘƘŜ ΨƳŀǎǎŀŎǊŜΩ 

story, Suarez chose to ignore it and used Ilan Pappe instead. 

The Suarez description of the beginning of the civil conflict is also heavily distorted. After partition, 

the Arab street exploded in violence, with battles opening across the mandate area. Like most anti-

Zionist revisionists, Suarez is uncomfortable with the early part of the civil conflict. The period 

between December and March 1948, when the Jews were suffering setbacks and large casualties, 

were unsure of success and when Arab violence was at a peak, are distinctly uncomfortable for him.  

He swiftly wants to reach April 1948, where the Zionist offensive began in preparation for the Arab 

armies invading in May. (All this context is missing in the Suarez book). 

He describes the first days in December 1947 thus (page 241): 

ΨScattered ethnic violence marked the first several days after the UN vote. There were bombings of 

Palestinian homes, café, bus queues and a cinema and there was more of the anti-Jewish violence 

that had begun to resurface by mid-!ǳƎǳǎǘΩ. 

However, to blame the Jews, Suarez needs to belittle the Arab attacks, so he says most Palestinians 

ǿŀƴǘŜŘ ǘƻ ΨƎŜǘ ƻƴ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜƛǊ ƭƛǾŜǎΩ (as if the Jews ŘƛŘƴΩǘ ǿŀƴǘ ǘƻ ΧΧΦ) and he relies on carefully 

selected quotes from the last High Commissioner of Palestine - Sir Alan Gordon Cunningham - to 

ŘŜǎŎǊƛōŜ ǘƘŜ !Ǌŀō ŀǘǘŀŎƪǎ ŀǎ ΨǎǇƻƴǘŀƴŜƻǳǎ ŀƴŘ ǳƴƻǊƎŀƴƛȊŜŘΩ suggesting the main weapons were 

ΨǎǘƛŎƪǎ ŀƴŘ ǎǘƻƴŜǎΩ.  

This clearly distorted narrative is destroyed by the very files which Suarez has accessed and cited ς 

all of which detail intensive Arab violence and until March/April 1948, an ever growing desperation 

within the Jewish leadership. Interestingly, and perhaps not accidentally, Suarez appears to have 

been less thorough in searching and accessing those files from this, the earlier part of the civil 

conflict. Take file WO 275/65. It details events in the build-up to the Partition on 29 November and 

ǘƘŜ ƛƴƛǘƛŀƭ ǾƛƻƭŜƴŎŜ ŦƻƭƭƻǿƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǾƻǘŜΧΦ From WO 275/65 ς 1 December 1947:   

North sector -Two Jewish buses attacked, one with rifles, one probably with small homemade bomb. 

Central sector - A bus was attacked near Lydda by Arab youth with automatic fire and a 
small bomb (which failed to explode). Another bus near Petach Tikva also attacked. 

The archive sources provide similar stories when discussing casualties. By 14 December 1947, in the 

first two weeks after Partition, there were eighty-four Jews dead, with fifty more seriously injured 

(WO 275/65).  By late April, the reported numbers between 30 November 1947 and 26 April 1948 

were Jews 990 dead, Arabs 1051 dead (FCO 141/8742 ς also not on SuarezΩǎ ŦƛƭŜ ƭƛǎǘύΦ 
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Casualty count from reported police incidents, covering the period from the Partition vote until 26 April 1948 

 

Endnote #471 provides ample evidence of all manner of error, distortion, misrepresentation, 

inverting the message of archive documents and blatant antisemitism.  

This section covers events at the end of November 1947, immediately following Resolution 181. 

Suarez describes the Jewish celebration of the vote (bottom of page 236) and the Jewish media 

response to it (top of page 237). Endnote #471 covers both items and directs us to four files as the 

source material: FCO 141/14286, FCO 141/14284, WO 261/571 & WO275/79. Only these four files 

are referenced.  

SuarezΩǎ ŘŜǎŎǊƛǇǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ WŜǿƛǎƘ ŎŜƭŜōǊŀǘƛƻƴ ƛǎ ŘǊƛǇǇƛƴƎ ǿƛǘƘ ƘŀǘŜΦ Lǘ ƛǎ ŀƭƳƻǎǘ ŀǎ ƛŦ ŀƭƳƻǎǘ ǎŜǾŜƴǘȅ 

years after the event, Thomas Suarez wants to get involved and spoil the party.  

Of interest to this research, he says this (page 236): 

Ψ²Ƙŀǘ /ǳƴƴƛƴƎƘŀƳ ŘŜǎŎǊƛōŜŘ ŀǎ άƘȅǎǘŜǊƛŎŀƭ ŎŜƭŜōǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ƻŦ ǾƛŎǘƻǊȅέ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǎŜǘǘƭŜƳŜƴǘǎ ŦƻƭƭƻǿƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ 

passage of Resolution 181 were not about having won a Zionist state in more than half of Palestine. 

¢ƘŜ ŎŜƭŜōǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ǿŜǊŜ ǊŀǘƘŜǊ ōŜŎŀǳǎŜ мум Ψǿŀǎ ŀ ǇǊeliminary step to a Jewish state in the fullest 

ŜȄǘŜƴǘ ƻŦ ƛǘǎ ƘƛǎǘƻǊƛŎŀƭ όōƛōƭƛŎŀƭύ ōƻǳƴŘǎΩ  ΨΦ 

What Suarez is saying is clear. The Jewish party was not about Resolution 181, but about what the 

WŜǿǎ ǿƻǳƭŘ ƳŀƴŀƎŜ ǘƻ ǘŀƪŜΣ ǘƘŀǘ ƘŀŘ ƴƻǘ ōŜŜƴ ƎƛǾŜƴ ǘƻ ǘƘŜƳΥ ΨǎǘŜŀƭΩ in other words.  Notice too, 

Suarez is not talking about some Jews, about Zionist leaders, or just attacking Zionist policy. Suarez 

Ƙŀǎ ǎǿŜǇǘ ǘƘŜ ōǊǳǎƘ ƻƴ ŜǾŜǊȅ WŜǿΣ ΨƘȅǎǘŜǊƛŎŀƭƭȅ ŎŜƭŜōǊŀǘƛƴƎΩ victory. Suarez would have you believe 

that *all* the Jews on the street are Zealots, land thieves and desperate to ethnically cleanse the 

Arabs. A clearly racist (anti-Jewish) and therefore blatantly antisemitic claim. But did he make it up, 

or was it in the files? 
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CO 141/14284 Monthly Report for November. Front page. Part one Political.  Image below, relevant 

text on following page: 

 

ΨThe gratification of the Yishuv was immediately manifested in public rejoicings in all Jewish centres: 

drinks were on the house in Tel Aviv and Jerusalem. Even the factions of extreme left and extreme 

right welcomed the outcome, as ensuring large scale immigration, the former viewing the 

establishment of a Jewish state by partition as a transition state to a bi-national Palestine, the latter 

as a preliminary step to a Jewish state ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŦǳƭƭŜǎǘ ŜȄǘŜƴǘ ƻŦ ƛǘǎ ƘƛǎǘƻǊƛŎŀƭ ōƻǳƴŘǎΦΩ 

Suarez Ƙŀǎ ǳǎŜ ǘƘŜ ǾŜǊȅ ǉǳƻǘŜ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘƛǎ ǘŜȄǘ όΨa preliminary step to a Jewish state in the fullest extent 

of its historical (biblical) boundsΩύ and clearly he has negated this entire piece, which suggests 

widespread rejoicing covering the entire political spectrum  - ŜǾŜƴ ōȅ ǘƘƻǎŜ ǿƘƻ ŦŀǾƻǳǊŜŘ ŀ Ψōƛ-

bŀǘƛƻƴŀƭΩ ǎǘŀǘŜ. Suarez ŜȄǘǊŀŎǘǎ ƻƴƭȅ ǘƘŜ ǉǳƻǘŜ ǳǎŜŘ ǘƻ ŘŜǎŎǊƛōŜ ǘƘŜ ΨŜȄǘǊŜƳŜ ǊƛƎƘǘΩΣ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜƴ ǳǎŜǎ 

it to taint everyone.  
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The words ΨƘȅǎǘŜǊƛŎŀƭ ŎŜƭŜōǊŀǘƛƻƴǎΩ come from a weekly intelligence Telegram 2295 in CO 141/14286. 

It merely reinforces the same message even further: 

 

There is no way these two statements can possibly be used to support what Suarez has said. He has 

clearly distorted the source files to make a blatantly antisemitic claim. 

The next paragraph in the book relates to the media reports the following morning. Suarez 

comments thus: 

Ψ¢ƘŜ ǾŀǊƛƻǳǎ IŜōǊŜǿ ƳŜŘƛŀ ǾŀǊƛŜŘ ƛƴ ǘǊŀŎǘΣ ōǳǘ ǘƘŜƛǊ ƳŜǎǎŀƎŜ ǿŀǎ ŎƻƴǎƛǎǘŜƴǘΤ ά¢ƘŜ ¸ƻǳǘƘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ 

Yishuv, as the newspapeǊ ΨIŀōƻƪŜǊΩ Ǉǳǘ ƛǘΣ άƳǳǎǘ ōǳǊȅ ŘŜŜǇ ƛƴ ǘƘŜƛǊ ƘŜŀǊǘǎ ǘƘŜ ŦŀŎǘ ǘƘŜ ŦǊƻƴǘƛŜǊǎ ƘŀǾŜ 

ƴƻǘ ōŜŜƴ ŦƛȄŜŘ ŦƻǊ ŀƭƭ ŜǘŜǊƴƛǘȅέΦ ¢Ƙƛǎ ǿŀǎ ǘƘŜ ŜǾŜǊ-ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘ ǎǳōǘŜȄǘ ŀǎ ΨǾŀǎǘ ŎǊƻǿŘǎ ƻŦ ǊŜƧƻƛŎƛƴƎ WŜǿǎ 

ǎǿŀǊƳŜŘ ǘƘŜ ǎǘǊŜŜǘǎΩΦ 

In the book, this paragraph immediately follows the ŎƻƳƳŜƴǘǎ ŀōƻǳǘ ǘƘŜ ΨƘȅǎǘŜǊƛŎŀƭ ŎŜƭŜōǊŀǘƛƻƴǎΩ 

ƳŜǊŜƭȅ ōŜƛƴƎ ŀ ΨǇǊŜƭƛƳƛƴŀǊȅ ǎǘŜǇ ǘƻ ŀ WŜǿƛǎƘ ǎǘŀǘŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŦǳƭƭŜǎǘ ŜȄǘŜƴǘ ƻŦ ƛǘǎ ƘƛǎǘƻǊƛŎŀƭ ōƻǳƴŘǎΩ. 

It is then immediately followed by an apparent quote from Ben Gurion from 1937 discussing how 

following Partition, the Zionists would Ψabolish partition and expand to the whole of PalestineΩ (yet 

another misuse of a Ben Gurion quote ς he was specifically referring to peaceful agreements!).17   

The inference is clear. The press, like the crowds, all have their eyes oƴ ΨƳƻǊŜ ƭŀƴŘΩΦ ¢Ƙƛǎ ƛǎ ǘƘŜ ΨŜǾŜǊ- 

ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘ ǎǳōǘŜȄǘΩΦ ¢ƘŜ {ƻǳǊŎŜ ŦƛƭŜ ŦƻǊ ǘƘƛǎ ŎƭŀƛƳ ƛǎ ²h нсмκртмΦ ¢ƘŜ ŘƻŎǳƳŜƴǘ ǿŀǎ ǘƘŜ Fortnightly 

Intelligence Newsletter. Item 30 discusses Jewish press coverage. Once again, the distortion has 

been brutal. We present both the image and the text on the following page: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                             
17 See discussion of falsified quotations, including the one Suarez has cited here 
http://www.camera.org/index.asp?x_context=7&x_issue=21&x_article=1446 
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The extract Suarez has referenced and commented on 

The top item was about the coverage in Haaretz. It celebrated the fact the enemies had so far failed 

to sabotage the partition deal. Then Haaretz mentioned the golden opportunity now presented to 

the Jews to set up their state, pointing out, they only had permission to set it up. In other words, it 

asked the Yishuv to recognise that there was still a lot of work to do. 

There follows a sentence pointing out that the revisionist paper complained about how the state 

was only going to be formed upon part of the historical homeland. 

The third paragraph, item 32, focuses on HaBoker, the paper mentioned in the Suarez book. We can 

see again that he has chopped the quote, and ignored other sections not helpful to the image he 

wishes to create. The newspaper is clearly not suggesting war, but rather suggesting the Jews should 

ŎŜƭŜōǊŀǘŜΦ Lǘ ǎǇŜŀƪǎ ƻŦ WŜǊǳǎŀƭŜƳ ŀƴŘ DŀƭƛƭŜŜ ƛƴ ƴŜŀǊ ΨǊŜƭƛƎƛƻǳǎ ǘŜǊƳǎΩΣ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ Ψlong tiƳŜΩ is clearly 

more of a spiritual wish than a call to war. The paper also goes on to hope that peaceful relations 

with the Arabs can be established. Suarez has butchered this section to take it out of context. 

Then there is a comment on Hashomer. The left-wing movement was clearly in favour of peace and 

co-operation (and for the most part a bi-national state). 

It is a gross distortion of the truth to suggest that the press presented further linkage to a consistent 

subtext of Ψabolishing partition and expanding to the whole of PalestineΩΦ Suarez is clearly not using 

the archive files with a serious intent to provide a fair reflection of the message within. He used four 

files for this one footnote.  
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It is impossible to overstate the problem. File FCO 141/14286 was used in no less than 15 different 

endnotes, FCO 141/14284 in 14 different endnotes, WO 261/571 in 14 different endnotes and 

WO275/79 in no less than 38 different endnotes. Or a combined total of 81 mentions in endnotes. 

And yet all these files present a picture completely at odds with the one Suarez presents in his book. 

Lƴ C/h мпмκмпнуп ŦƻǊ ŜȄŀƳǇƭŜΣ ǘƘŜǊŜ ƛǎ ƳŜƴǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƭƻŎŀƭ !Ǌŀōǎ Ψleaving matters to the Arab 

statesΩ όǿŜŜƪƭȅ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ сκмнύΣ ƻŦ Ben Gurion specifically asking for calm (13/2), of Arab arms steadily 

entering Palestine (20/12), of Arab policemen persistently deserting with their weapons and the 

weapons of their colleagues (25/12), of Arab violent strategy (25/12), of Arab irregulars infiltrating 

into Palestine (24/1), of more infiltrations (2/2) and that Arab towns would not be attacked unless 

they attack (1/2). A similar image is presented in all the other three files. 

 

Unless it is deliberate, how can anyone cite these files 81 times and still miss the central message? 

 

List of Arab policeman who had absconded with their weapons (Ψand those of their colleaguesΩ) in a single day in early 
January 1948.  
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6: Before the Holocaust, up to the Evian Conference (1938) 

Using a report about a Jewish British soldier in Palestine in 1919 who caused a disturbance when 
drunk, Suarez seems to imply this was politically motivated, ŎŀƭƭƛƴƎ ƛǘ ŀƴ ŜŀǊƭȅ ŀǘǘŜƳǇǘ ŀǘ ΨZionist 
ǇǊƻǾƻŎŀǘƛƻƴΩ (page 41).  But the file does not identify the political leanings of the soldier.  We have 
no way of knowing whether the disturbance was anything more than an act of drunkenness.18  This 
projection onto all Zionists of a single action of a Jew is common among anti-Israel activists. 

Suarez also seizes on anti-Zionist arguments made prior to the Holocaust - see eg page 34 (quote 
from Berlin correspondent of London Standard) and page 42 where he quotes from a petition 
delivered by a Congressman to President Wilson on 4 March 1919, arguing that: 

ΨZionism is turning back the clock on hard-won enlightened valuesΩ ŀƴŘ Ψwe reject the Zionist project 
for the very reason that the new era upon which the world is entering aims to establish government 
everywhere on principles of true democracyΦΩ 

 
Yet none of these detractors of Zionism could see the Holocaust coming, which killed two-thirds of 
9ǳǊƻǇŜΩǎ WŜǿǎΦ If asked about Zionism after the Holocaust, they certainly would not have spoken 
ŀōƻǳǘ ΨŜƴƭƛƎƘǘŜƴŜŘ ǾŀƭǳŜǎΩΦ  

The reliance of Suarez on pre-Holocaust Jewish anti-Zionism is morbid. The main political body of 
Jewish opposition to Zionism wŀǎ ǘƘŜ ΨJewish Labour BundΩΦ19 The centre of this movement was 
Poland. Polish Jewry was annihilated in the Holocaust. It is a perverse and morbid fixation to use a 
pre-Holocaust position to argue against an Israel that did not exist before the Holocaust that was 
to slaughter the six million. 

Suarez frequently ǊŜŦŜǊŜƴŎŜǎ ΨLƴ ǘƘŜ {ƘŀŘƻǿǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ IƻƭƻŎŀǳǎǘΩ by Yosef Grodzinsky.  In the book, 
DǊƻŘȊƛƴǎƪȅ ŘƛǎŎǳǎǎŜǎ ǘƘŜ .ǳƴŘƛǎǘ ƳƻǾŜƳŜƴǘΣ ƘƛƎƘƭƛƎƘǘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŘƛŦŦŜǊŜƴŎŜ ōŜǘǿŜŜƴ ǘƘŜ ½ƛƻƴƛǎǘ ΨƭŀƴŘ ƻŦ 
ǘƘŜƛǊ ƻǿƴΩ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ .ǳƴŘƛǎǘ Ψhere-ƴŜǎǎΩ ς ΨǿƘŜǊŜǾŜǊ ǿŜ ƭŀȅ ƻǳǊ ƘŀǘΩ (page 5). Given what happened to 
these communities in the Holocaust, it is absurd to use pre-war Jewish anti-Zionism as a weapon 
in a post-Holocaust world. It is made the more perverse by Grodzinsky relating the destruction of 
the Bundists during the war (page 133), the Bundist aǘǘŜƳǇǘ ǘƻ ΨǊŜǾƛǾŜΩ ƭƛŦŜ ƛƴ post-war Poland (page 
33) and his observation that those who returned to Poland faced ΨŎǊŀǎǎ ŀƴǘƛ-Semitism and pogroms 
in Poland, and from mid-1946 on, they begŀƴ ŦƭŜŜƛƴƎ ōȅ ǘƘŜ ǘƘƻǳǎŀƴŘǎΩ (page 114). Or indeed, his 
observation ǘƘŀǘ Ƴŀƴȅ ƻŦ ǘƘŜƳ ƘŀŘ ΨŎƘŀƴƎŜŘ ǘƘŜƛǊ ƳƛƴŘǎΩ (page 76). For a book which Suarez gives 
special mention, it is surprising how little of it he seems to have read or absorbed. As with all his 
material, he is very selective about what he takes from each source. 

The fact that Suarez ƛǎ ŀōƭŜ ǘƻ ŜƴŘƻǊǎŜ ǘƘŜ ŀǊƎǳƳŜƴǘ ǘƘŀǘ ½ƛƻƴƛǎƳ ǾƛƻƭŀǘŜŘ ǘƘŜ ǿƻǊƭŘΩǎ 
ΨŜƴƭƛƎƘǘŜƴŜŘ ǾŀƭǳŜǎΩ just twenty-five years before the Jewish Genocide in Europe speaks volumes 
about his mindset. It is more logical to argue that if Israel had been created ten years earlier, many 
more lives might have been saved. 

In these pages, Suarez also builds the ΨZionism equals racismΩ paradigm. This is disingenuous. The 
only way Zionists of 1920 would fail such a test is if they had been educated in the 21st century. One 
must look at the prevailing attitudes of everyone involved at the beginning of the Mandate -Jewish 

                                                             
18 TNA FO 608/99 
19 See Yosef Grodzinsky, In the Shadow of the Holocaust: The Struggle between Jews and Zionists in the 
Aftermath of World War II. 



 

  

DAVID COLLIER, JONATHAN HOFFMAN SEPT 2017 21 

 

A REPORT ON A MODERN ANTISEMITIC FRAUD. RESEARCH BY DAVID COLLIER AND JONATHAN HOFFMAN 

Zionists, Jewish anti-Zionists, the British, French, League of Nations and the Arabs - to realise how 
prevalent were views considered unacceptable today.  This is a characteristic of the time - not of 
Zionism.  In the 1919 FO 608/99 file, for example, are many documents talking openly about Arab 
ΨŘƛǎƭƛƪŜΩ ƻŦ WŜǿǎΣ ǎǳŎƘ ŀǎ ƛƴ ŀ ǇǊƻǘŜǎt letter from the Arabs of Nablus.  

 

Petition from Arabs of Nablus whicƘ ǎǇŜŀƪǎ ƻŦ ŀ ϥŘƛǎƭƛƪŜ ƻŦ WŜǿǎΩ 

In the archives, there is also blatant British antisemitism - that Suarez fails to call out, and at times 
even uses ς as we demonstrate below in page 29. 

Page 46 of the Suarez book is instructive; such a page is to be found in most anti-Israel revisionist 
texts.  It begins in 1919 and ends in 1933. Fourteen years - the formative years of British rule and the 
first decade of the Mandate ς receive barely a mention. An entire archive of British documentation 
and yet, not a single document can be called upon to support the Suarez narrative.  

These years of course saw the formation of the Hagana: 

ΨIt was not until after the anti-Jewish riots of 1920 and 1921 that a definite Defence (Hagana) 

Organisation was set up.ô20 

Or even later: 

ΨThe riots (of 1929) had another outcome: In 1930-1931 a band of Hagana officers set up their own 
ƎǊƻǳǇ ŎŀƭƭŜŘ ǘƘŜ ΨLǊƎǳƴ .ŜǘΩΦΩ21 

The tale of Jewish defence against (or reaction to) Arab violence. The underlying truth of the 
historical narrative. A central element always omitted from anti-Zionist texts. 

                                                             
20 ¢b! ²h нтрκмнм .ǊƛǘƛǎƘ LƴǘŜƭƭƛƎŜƴŎŜ ŘƻŎǳƳŜƴǘ ƻƴ Ψ.ŀŎƪƎǊƻǳƴŘ ǘƻ tŀƭŜǎǘƛƴŜΩ, 1947 
21 Morris, 1948, page 120 
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Suarez almost completely ignores the riots of 1920 and 1921, the brutal massacres in 1929 and 
further Arab uprisings in the early 1930s, even though these years defined the course of the 
Mandate (in direct contradiction of Suarez pillars #2 and #3). 

In fact, when Suarez briefly mentions the 1929 massacres that saw 133 Jews murdered (page 46 in a 
single sentence), he does not even reference a contemporary archive source, but rather uses a 
Cabinet paper report from 1932.  There are files on these atrocities in the archive ς but Suarez opted 
to ignore them, maybe not even to search for them. Take CO 733/182/6, a file looking at the 
necessary ΨtǊƻǇƻǎŀƭǎ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ŘŜŦŜƴŎŜ ƻŦ WŜǿƛǎƘ ŎƻƭƻƴƛŜǎΩ in a deteriorating and hostile environment.  

Why would someone considering the violence of the Mandate period not access this file? 

 

Discussion of urgent need for protection of exposed Jewish villages file (CO 733/182/6 - 28 December 1929) 

Also included in the file is a Telegram from the High Commissioner for Palestine (25 February 1930) 
ŘƛǎŎǳǎǎƛƴƎ 5ǊǳȊŜ ǿƘƻ ŀǊǊƛǾŜŘ ƛƴ WŀŦŦŀ ǿƛǘƘ ƛƴǎǘǊǳŎǘƛƻƴǎ ǘƻ ΨƻǊƎŀƴƛǎŜ ōŀƴŘǎ ǘƻ ŀǘǘŀŎƪ WŜǿƛǎƘ ŎƻƭƻƴƛŜǎΩ. 

When addressing the brutal and violŜƴǘ !Ǌŀō ǳǇǊƛǎƛƴƎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ мфолΩǎΣ Suarez does so only cursorily 
(page 50) - and blames ǘƘŜ WŜǿǎ ŦƻǊ ΨdrivingΩ ǘƘŜ !Ǌŀōǎ ǘƻ ǾƛƻƭŜƴŎŜΦ  Again, Suarez steers clear of 
most of the archive files relating to this period. Page 50 begins before the uprising in 1933 and fast 
forwards to 1938. 3000-5000 people died and over 20,000 were wounded in violence that spanned 
four years.22 But it merits not even a page.  It is no coincidence that the book begins to refocus only 
in 1938, in line with Zionist reactions to the rapidly deteriorating outlook in both Europe and 
Palestine: Suarez only appears interested in the specific items that can be used to demonise 
ZionismΦ ¢ŀƪŜ ǘƘƛǎ ΨŦƻǳƴŘƛƴƎ ǇƛƭƭŀǊΩ ƻƴ ǇŀƎŜ мм of the book: 

 óIt was Zionist terrorism the ultimatelȅ ŘƛŎǘŀǘŜŘ ǘƘŜ ŎƻǳǊǎŜ ƻŦ ŜǾŜƴǘǎ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ƳŀƴŘŀǘŜΧô 

Upon this single unsupported belief, Suarez builds an entire ΨnarrativeΩ, using it to forge his title 
ΨState of TerrƻǊΩ. Like most of his claims, it is an empty statement and remains without citation or 
reference on page 11.  

¢ƘŜ ŎƭŀƛƳ ŀǇǇŜŀǊǎ ǘƻ ǎǳƎƎŜǎǘ ǘƘŀǘ ΨtŀǊǘƛǘƛƻƴΩΣ ǘƘŜ Ψfinal destinationΩ of the Mandate, was dictated 
through the actions of Zionist terror.  That the violence of the Jews, rather than the violence or 
rejectionist stance of the Arabs, ƭŜŘ ǘƻ ΨǎŜǇŀǊŀǘƛƻƴΩΦ  

Yet the course of events during the Mandate, that led to the 1947 UN partition plan, was not driven 
by Zionist Terror, but rather by the Arab rejection of all Jewish claims. The image on the following 
page, of a file from 1935, indicates that Partition  was already being viewed by the British as a way 
out of the impasse twelve years before 1947. This entirely negates SuarezΩǎ ŎƻƳƳŜƴǘ ōŜŎŀǳǎŜ ƛƴ 

                                                             
22 https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/1936%E2%80%931939_Arab_revolt_in_Palestine 
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мфорΣ ǘƘŜǊŜ ǿŀǎ ƴƻ Ψ½ƛƻƴƛǎǘ ǘŜǊǊƻǊΩ at all. Only Arab violence. SuarezΩǎ tƛƭƭŀǊ Іо όǎŜŜ ǇŀƎŜ 4 above) 
thus collapses. 

 

British archive file CO 733/283 suggesting partition 

This understanding ƻŦ ΨǇŀǊǘƛǘƛƻƴΩ became entrenched during the 1930s: 

The Arab Rebellion convinced Wauchope (High Commissioner, Palestine) ǘƘŀǘ Ψthere was no chance of 
creating ŀ ǎƛƴƎƭŜ ŎƻƳƳǳƴƛǘȅΩΣ ΧΦŀƴŘ ƘŜ ǊŜŀŎƘŜŘ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƴŎƭǳǎƛƻƴ ǘƘŀǘ ΨtŀƭŜǎǘƛƴŜΩǎ ŦǳǘǳǊŜ ŘŜǇŜƴŘŜŘ ƻƴ 
ŘƛǾƛŘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŎƻǳƴǘǊȅΩ23  

Another book Suarez has not consulted properly. !ƴƻǘƘŜǊ ŎƻƴŎŜǇǘ ƘŜ ŘƻŜǎƴΩǘ ǎŜŜƳ ǘƻ ǳƴŘŜǊǎǘŀƴŘ. 

Perhaps the most twisted elements of the book are related to the horrors experienced by Jews 
before, during and shortly after the Holocaust. As a strategy, Suarez disassociates Zionists from the 
Holocaust - as if ΨJewsΩ and ΨZionistsΩ are two non-intersecting groups (his Pillar #4, see page 4 
above). 

SuarezΩǎ analysis of the 1938 Evian Conference, on resettling refugees fleeing from Hitler, is also 
riddled with error. 

Suarez suggests (page 27) that the World Zionist Organisation refused to participate in the 1938 

Evian conference, because it was not predicated on a Zionist State in Palestine. That is not true. 

Weizmann asked permission to appear at the Conference but was turned down flat24.  Twenty of 

the 39 non-government observer organisations25 represented Jewish interests26 (it is not clear 

whether the WZO was one of the 39). And the British insisted that Palestine could not be discussed 

at the Evian Conference27.  

                                                             
23 Segev, Tom, One Palestine, Complete: Jews and Arabs under the British Mandate (page 400) 
24 W Laqueur, History of Zionism, page 507  
25 ¢ƘŜ ŀǎǎŜǊǘƛƻƴ ƛƴ WƻƴŀǘƘŀƴ IƻŦŦƳŀƴΩǎ ƛƴƛǘƛŀƭ ǊŜǾƛŜǿ όƻƴ !ƳŀȊƻƴΣ op cit), that NGOs were not invited, has 
proved on further research to be incorrect 
26 H Feingold, The Politics of Rescue: The Roosevelt Administration and the Holocaust, 1938-1945 
27 W Laqueur, op cit 
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On the next page Suarez suggests that Ben Gurion was willing to see Jewish children in Germany 

killed by the Nazis, rather than see them escape to somewhere other than Palestine (on the 

mendaciousness of his interpretation of this quote, see page 9 above).  

In endnote #25 Suarez cites a book by John Quigley28 in support of the assertion regarding Evian.  On 

page 26 Quigley does say that the World Zionist Organisation refused to participate.  This is in turn 

sourced from books by Davis29 and Avishai30.  We followed them up.  

 

This is when we started getting sucked into the seemingly bottomless and incestuous vortex of anti-

Zionist revisionists, all citing each other, with no original source in sight. This is precisely how myths 

about Israel become accepted wisdom.  Sure enough, ƻƴ ǇŀƎŜ нп 5ŀǾƛǎ ǿǊƛǘŜǎ ǘƘŀǘ ²½h ΨabstainedΩ 

in Evian votes; this is sourced from C Sykes, Crossroads to Israel (1967) page 200. (We did not follow 

this trail further). 

 

Avishai is not supportive of SuarezΩǎ ŎƭŀƛƳ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ ²ƻǊƭŘ ½ƛƻƴƛǎǘ hǊƎŀƴƛǎŀǘƛƻƴ ǊŜŦǳǎŜŘ ǘƻ ǇŀǊǘƛŎƛǇŀǘŜ 

in the 1938 Evian conference.  On the contraryΦ hƴ ǇŀƎŜ мрн ƘŜ ǿǊƛǘŜǎΥ ΨOnce the question of 

Palestine was dropped from the [Evian]agenda, Golda Myerson, the Jewish Agency delegate to Evian, 

was content to observe, without uttering a word. άL ŘƛŘƴΩǘ ƪƴƻǿ ǘƘŜƴ ǘƘŀǘ ƴƻǘ ŎƻƴŎŜƴǘǊŀǘƛƻƴ ŎŀƳǇǎ 

but Death Camps awaited the refugees whom no-one wantedέΣ she wrote later in her memoirsΦ άIf I 

had known that, I could not have gone on sitting there silently, hour after hour, being disciplined and 

politeΦέ όMy Life page 1руύΩΦ CǳǊǘƘŜǊΣ ǘƘŜǊŜ ƛǎ ƴƻǘƘƛƴƎ ǘƻ ǎǳǇǇƻǊǘ SuarezΩǎ ƻǘƘŜǊ ŎƭŀƛƳǎ ƻƴ ǇŀƎŜ нуΦ 

Suarez continually engages in the strategy of tainting all Zionists because of the actions of one. So, 

if any Jewish Zionist said or did anything negative, throughout the entire period between 1917 and 

1948, Suarez will use the example to reflect the action back on all Zionists. He will then call it 

Zionist policy or strategy. It is a highly racist strategy to employ. When discussing events before 

and after the Holocaust, it becomes sickeningly offensive.  

The Jews in Palestine and the two-thirds of European Jews murdered by the Nazis were closer to 

each other than any other two groups. The Jewish population in Palestine exploded between 1929 

and 1939, thanks to Jewish refugees from Europe. By 1939 - inside the Mandate - more than half of 

the Jewish population was recent immigrants escaping European fascism.31 

The Jews in Palestine and the Jews in Europe were family.  Brothers, uncles, grandparents, mothers, 

fathers, children.  Or friends and neighbours left behind. Suarez seeks to paint a picture where the 

Jews were more concerned with power, politics and money, than with saving their own family.  

Suarez cites Hanna Braun several times in the book. Braun was an anti-Zionist Jew and eventually 

became an activist in the Palestine Solidarity Campaign. Yet in her book, she also talks about the 

                                                             
28 John Quigley, Palestine and Israel: A Challenge to Justice 
29 Uri Davis, Israel: Utopia Incorporated 
30 Bernard Avishai, The Tragedy of Zionism 
31 Yehoshua Porath, The Palestinian Arab National Movement, 1929-1939: From Riots to Rebellion (Vol 2) Page 
39 
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relationship between the ΨJewish community in PalestineΩ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ΨEuropean JewsΩΦ32 This quote from 

her book (page 65): 

Ψ¢ƘŜ ǿŀǊ ȅŜŀǊǎ ǘƻǳŎƘŜŘ ǘƘŜ WŜǿƛǎƘ ŎƻƳƳǳƴƛǘȅ ƻŦ tŀƭŜǎǘƛƴŜΣ Ƴŀƛƴƭȅ ōȅ ǘƘŜ ǘŜǊǊƛōƭŜ ŎƻƳƳƻƴ ŦŜŀǊΣ 

amounting to dread, of practically all European Jews about the fate of family and friends left behind 

and by the mobilisation of large numbers of young men and women and their recruitment into the 

.ǊƛǘƛǎƘ ŀǊƳȅΩΦ 

Like most of his sources, Suarez clearly neither read, nor used this source properly. The quote 

negates everything he is saying about the Zionists, the British war effort and the Holocaust. Similarly, 

Morris in his book 1948 (cited by Suarez in the bibliography) writes: 

ΨMost Hagana troops had ƭƻǎǘ ǊŜƭŀǘƛǾŜǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ IƻƭƻŎŀǳǎǘΩ33 

The attempt to disconnect the Jews of Palestine with the Jews of Europe is necessary for SuarezΩǎ 

narrative: It is one of the pillars (Pillar #5, see page 4 above) on which his entire edifice is built. It is 

sickening to suggest that the European Jews who escaped to Palestine in the 1930s did not care 

about their brothers, sisters, parents, children, uncles, aunts, grandparents, friends and 

neighbours whom they left behind.  

If one begins to apply this understanding to events, to connect the people (not all were Zionists, but 

all were Jews), the entire Suarez narrative on this issue falls apart.  When one further incorporates 

his implication (both about Zionist behaviour at the Evian conference and in Zionist actions in the DP 

camps after the war ς on which more later) that the world was willing to rush and bring Jews to 

safety across the globe, were it not for Zionist interference, then a truly disgusting stench begins to 

fill the page. This false narrative is deeply antisemitic. 

Lƴ Ƙƛǎ ŘƛǎŎǳǎǎƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ IŀΩŀǾŀǊŀ ŀƎǊŜŜƳent, Suarez further demonstrates his preparedness to twist 

every point on this issue, regardless of the hypocrisy and inconsistency of his message.  Throughout 

the discussion over Jewish refugees Suarez Ƙŀǎ ǎǳƎƎŜǎǘŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ ½ƛƻƴƛǎǘǎ ŘƛŘƴΩǘ ǊŜŀƭƭȅ ŎŀǊŜ ŀōout 

ǘƘŜ ǇŜƻǇƭŜ ōǳǘ ƴŜŜŘŜŘ ΨŎŀƴƴƻƴ ŦƻŘŘŜǊΩ. He mentions this in the text referring to before the War, 

ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ²ŀǊ ŀƴŘ ŀŦǘŜǊ ǘƘŜ ²ŀǊΦ IŜ ŜǾŜƴ ǳǎŜǎ .ǊŀǳƴΩǎ ŘƛǎŎǳǎǎƛƻƴǎ ŀǎ ŀ ǘŜŀŎƘŜǊ ƛƴ 9ƛlat to push the 

message again (page 28).  

ΨWŜǿǎ ǿŜǊŜ ƴŜŜŘŜŘ ŀǎ Ŏŀƴƴƻƴ ŀƴŘ ŘŜƳƻƎǊŀǇƘƛŎ ŦƻŘŘŜǊΩ 

His entire argument over the fight for Jewish refugees, the actions of the DPs in Europe and again 

over the Jews in Arab countries was that the Zionist leaders just needed numbers, they did not care 

about the people. The dehumanisation of the Zionist leaders is a constant refrain.  

Putting aside the obscene suggestion that Jews care less about their families than other people, on 

pages 47-пу ƘŜ ŎƻǾŜǊǎ ǘƘŜ IŀΩŀǾŀǊŀ ǘǊŀƴǎŦŜǊ ŀƎǊŜŜƳŜƴǘΦ ό¢Ƙƛǎ ŀƎǊŜŜƳŜƴǘ ōŜǘǿŜŜƴ Nazi Germany 

and Zionist German Jews was signed on 25 August 1933. It was designed to enable Jews fleeing 

antisemitic persecution to transfer some portion of their assets to their refuge in Palestine. It 

provided some relief for Jews fleeing by allowing them to recover some of the possessions and 

                                                             
32 Hannah Braun, WŜŜŘǎ 5ƻƴΩǘ terish 
33 Morris, 1948 (page 198) 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Nazi_Germany
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Zionist
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/German_Jews
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Antisemitism
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Mandatory_Palestine
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assets they were forced to surrender before departing.  A portion of those possessions could be 

recovered by transferring them to Palestine as German exports).  

But here is how Suarez describes the agreement (page 47): 

 ΨThe point of the agreement however, was not getting out the people themselves but getting part of 

their assets out with themΦΩ 

A classic antisemitic slur: TƘŜ WŜǿǎ ƻŦ tŀƭŜǎǘƛƴŜ ŘƛŘƴΩǘ ǊŜŀƭƭȅ ǿŀƴǘ ǘƘŜƛǊ ŦŀƳƛƭȅ ƛƴ 9ǳǊƻǇŜ ǘƻ ŜǎŎŀǇŜΣ 

they just wanted the money.  Further, it entirely contradicts a central ƳŜǎǎŀƎŜ ƻŦ ΨŎŀƴƴƻƴ ŦƻŘŘŜǊΩ 

Suarez uses throughout the book. ²Ƙȅ ŘƛŘƴΩǘ ǘƘŜ ½ƛƻƴƛǎǘǎ ǿŀƴǘ ǘƘŜǎŜ WŜǿǎ ŀǎ ΨŎŀƴƴƻƴ ŦƻŘŘŜǊΩΚ 

Because Suarez had found an even better way of using them to demonise the Zionists. A twisted use 

of Jewish victims of persecution to attack other Jews. Whenever convenient, Suarez performs 

acrobatics to simply turn an argument on its head. 

That section of the book is historically flawed and highly offensive. He suggests that if not for the 

IŀΩŀǾŀǊŀ ŀƎǊŜŜƳŜƴǘΣ ǘƘŜ ŜŎƻƴƻƳȅ ƻŦ DŜǊƳŀƴȅ ǿƻǳƭŘ ƘŀǾŜ ΨŦŀŎŜŘ ŜŎƻƴƻƳƛŎ Ǌǳƛƴ ŦǊƻƳ ǇƻƻǊ ŜȄǇƻǊǘǎΩΦ 

hǊ ƛƴ ǎƛƳǇƭŜǊ ƭŀƴƎǳŀƎŜΥ bƻ IŀΩŀǾŀǊŀ ŀƎǊŜŜƳŜƴǘΣ ƴƻ ²ƻrld War Two. Therefore, the Zionists are to 

blame for everything (including the Holocaust). 
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7: During World War Two 
 

On page 68 Suarez recounts the story of the Patria. It provides a useful example of how Suarez uses 

and abuses source material. The story of the Patria was a tragedy. It was a ship that was ordered by 

the British in 1940 to remove Jewish refugees who were fleeing Europe and who had attempted 

unsuccessfully to get into Palestine. The Hagana wanted to damage the ship so that it could not sail. 

Unfortunately, the operation went wrong and 267 people died and 172 were injured.  

At the start of the book, Suarez suggests he relies on three main historians: Pappe, Morris and 

Segev. How many of them does he use to describe and cite events connected to the Patria? None. 

Segev for example ǎǳƎƎŜǎǘǎ ΨǘƘŜ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴ ǿŀǎ Ƙŀǎǘȅ ŀƴŘ ōǳƴƎƭŜŘΩ.34 

The scenario of a tragic accident would not suit Suarez, so he uses none of his favoured historians 

to support him: He simply suggests that Jewish terrorists blew up the ship, without relating the 

context. Even though he has access to numerous sources that confirm this was an accident, Suarez 

prefers to rely on a document that can cast doubt on such a scenario: 

ΨThe British committee investigating the tragedy was unsure whether the loss of life was due to the 

saboteurs having bungled, or whether they were callously prepared to risk killing a number of 

passeƴƎŜǊǎ ƛƴ ƻǊŘŜǊ ǘƻ ǎƛƴƪ ǘƘŜ ǎƘƛǇΩ (page 69) 

The British archive documents on this incident are clearly redundant ς they are no more than the ill-

informed opinions of those trying to discover what happened.  It is the Israel archives which are key, 

as used by the Israeli historians. The British archive could (and indeed should) be used to investigate, 

to compare with other archives and to build a historical account based on a cumulative appreciation 

of all available sources. What Suarez does here must surely be deliberate. He ignores the academic 

and educated findings of historians who have already considered this, and chooses to rely on ill-

informed statements simply because they suit his purpose. Why would anyone want to use British 

archive documents historically to assess the truth behind what was in the mind of the Hagana at the 

time of the Patria incident? It makes no sense. 

But Suarez ƘŀǎƴΩǘ finished. He ǘƘŜƴ ǘŀƪŜǎ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳƳŜƴǘ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ ŀǊŎƘƛǾŜ ǘƻ ŘǊŀǿ Ƙƛǎ ƻǿƴ ΨŜȄǇŜǊǘ 

ƻǇƛƴƛƻƴΩ ǘƘŀǘΥ 

ΨLƴŜǎŎŀǇŀōƭȅ ǘƘŜ WŜǿƛǎƘ !gency was indeed prepared to risk ƪƛƭƭƛƴƎ ŀ ƴǳƳōŜǊ ƻŦ ǇŀǎǎŜƴƎŜǊǎΩ. Going on 

to create a scientific argument that he knows this, because of where the passengers were sited on 

the ship.   

And then he goes on to suggest ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜǊŜ ǿŀǎ ŀ ΩŎƻǾŜǊ-ǳǇΩ ōȅ ǘƘŜ LǎǊŀŜƭƛ ƎƻǾŜǊƴƳŜƴǘ ǿƘƛŎƘ 

suggested that the passengers committed suicide, rather than be taken back to Europe.  

 

SuarezΩǎ ΨŜǾƛŘŜƴŎŜΩ for this is cited in endnotes #123 and #125. There are three National Archive files 

mentioned: CO 733/446/4, CO 733/457/12 and CAB 66/13/48/0001. 

                                                             
34 Segev, op cit (page 459) 
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CO 733/446/4 has evidence of a British investigation into the Patria disaster, carried out by 
Alan Rose, A.J. McNeil and L.J. Edwards.  This does not support the allegation of a 'cover 
up'. And in the same file, the High Commissioner (MacMichael) does not mention any such 
possibility.  
 
CO 733/457/12 is claimed in the endnote to contain ΨJewish Affairs, Terrorism, Intelligence 
Summary No. 8/45, esp. 3-пΩΦ Lǘ ŘƻŜǎƴΩǘΦ This must be a mistaken reference in the book. It contains 
ŦƛƭŜǎ ƻƴ ΨмфпрΥ tŀƭŜǎǘƛƴŜ ǎƛǘǳŀǘƛƻƴΥ ōƻƳō ƻǳǘǊŀƎŜǎΥ ŎƻƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴ ōȅ ǘƘŜ WŜǿƛǎƘ !ƎŜƴŎȅΩΦ 
 
CAB 66/13/48/0001 does not exist. Or at least it did not appear to exist, though eventually we 
located it. (Often, we found that SuarezΩǎ ǊŜŦŜǊŜƴŎƛƴƎ ǿŀǎ too vague to be able to easily locate the 
relevant document within a file. In particular his referencing of the Cabinet group of files (prefixed 
by CAB, see Appendix) was far too imprecise to permit verification. Almost none of them are 
searchable in the format Suarez lists them.  We attempted to find several ς we found some by 
dropping or exchanging digits, but the process was too time consuming and inefficient to pursue 
further)35.  
 
The Patria event of course is never placed into context. These Jewish refugees had escaped genocide 

ŀƴŘ ŀǘǘŜƳǇǘŜŘ ǘƻ ƳŀƪŜ ƛǘ ƛƴǘƻ tŀƭŜǎǘƛƴŜΦ Lǘ ǿŀǎƴΩǘ ǘƘŜ IŀƎŀƴŀ ǘƘŀǘ ŘŜƴƛŜŘ ǘƘŜƳ ŜƴǘǊȅΦ Lǘ ǿŀǎƴΩǘ ǘƘŜ 

Hagaƴŀ ǘƘŀǘ ƻŦŦƭƻŀŘŜŘ ǘƘŜƳ ŦǊƻƳ ƻƴŜ ǎƘƛǇ ƻƴǘƻ ŀƴƻǘƘŜǊΦ Lǘ ǿŀǎƴΩǘ ǘƘŜ IŀƎŀƴŀ ǘƘŀǘ ǿŀǎ ƎƻƛƴƎ ǘƻ 

deport these refugees and send them away from Palestine. It was the British. Instead, Suarez paints 

these refugees as illegals, and suggests the British wanted to take them to Mauritius out of kindness, 

ōŜŎŀǳǎŜΣ ƛƴ aŀǳǊƛǘƛǳǎ ΨǘƘŜǊŜ ǿŜǊŜ ŦŀŎƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ŦƻǊ 5tΩǎΩ (page 68).  

On page 78 Suarez ǿǊƛǘŜǎ ΨThe Jewish Agency maintained its opposition to Jews joining the Allied 

struggle against the NazisΩΦ There is no evidence whatsoever for this ς in fact the opposite is true. 

When the Second World War began in September 1939, David Ben Gurion, the head of the Jewish 

AgencyΣ ŦŀƳƻǳǎƭȅ ŘŜŎƭŀǊŜŘΥ ΨWe will fight the White Paper as if there is no war, and fight the war as 

if there is no White PapeǊΩΦ Chaim Weizmann, the President of the World Zionist Organisation, 

offered the British government the full cooperation of the Jewish community in Mandatory 

Palestine. Weizmann sought to establish an identifiably Jewish fighting formation (under a Jewish 

flag) under the auspices of the British Army.  His request for a separate formation was rejected, but 

many Jews in Mandatory Palestine wanted to fight the Nazis and joined the British Army. Some of 

these were formed into separate Jewish companies in their battalions. 

On page 231 Suarez ŀǎǎŜǊǘǎ ǘƘŀǘ ά!ƳƻƴƎ ǘƘŜ [ŜƘƛ ǘǊŀƛƴŜŜǎ ǿŜǊŜ άŎƘƛƭŘǊŜƴ ƻŦ ǘŜƴŘŜǊ ȅŜŀǊǎέΣ ǎƻƳŜ ƻŦ 

whom died in the battleέΦ  ²h нсмκртм ƛǎ ŎƛǘŜŘ. This file does not mention this. 

 

WO 208/1705 is also cited (dating from 1944). It is clearly written by a colonial official with an 

animus against the Jews in Palestine. For example, he suggests that the Jewish Youth Movement was 

ΨǳƴǇƭŜŀǎŀƴǘƭȅ ǊŜƳƛƴƛǎŎŜƴǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ IƛǘƭŜǊ ¸ƻǳǘƘΩ.  That such a repugnant comparison could be made in 

1944 beggars belief. We are reminded of this quote from Bartley Crum36Υ ΨI trust I will not shock the 

                                                             
35 Similarly endnote #8 states that Weizmann claimed that Arabs are inferior people and so do not deserve a 
vote. In a review of the book (op cit), one of us pointed out that Suarez gives no source for this claim of 
Weizmann. Suarez responded (http://thomassuarez.com/houseoflordspaper142.html) 
 that the quote is in FO 608/99. We checked this large file. The quote does not appear.  
36 Bartley Crum, Behind The Silken Curtain  

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/David_Ben-Gurion
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Jewish_Agency_for_Israel
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Jewish_Agency_for_Israel
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Chaim_Weizmann
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/World_Zionist_Organization
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Flag_of_Israel
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Flag_of_Israel
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/British_Army
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reader if I say that fully 70% of the British colonial officials whom I met in Palestine either were, at 

worst, openly antisemitic or, at best, completely unsympathetic and ever resentful towards Jewish 

hopes in Palestine.Ω 

Throughout the book, Suarez appears to regard the material in the UK archives as written by an 

impartial observer (Pillar #7, see page 4 above). But the truth - of course - is that it displays a 

growing hostility, due to the deterioration in the geopolitical environment, as the Mandate 

ǇǊƻƎǊŜǎǎŜŘΦ .ȅ ǘƘŜ ƭŀǘŜ мфолΩǎΣ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ .ǊƛǘƛǎƘ ŦƻǊŎƛōƭȅ ǎǘƻǇǇŜŘ WŜǿƛǎƘ ǊŜŦǳƎŜŜǎ Ŧleeing Europe, and as 

a result experienced growing violence directed towards their soldiers, elements of Zionist society 

and the British became adversarial.  The files and the comments within must be read against this 

background. Suarez fails to do this.  

Effectively, Suarez is simply grabbing at selective quotes, and presenting them out of all context. 

Every document, every official, every situation, would need to be researched to begin to 

comprehend the underlying messages contained in some of the stories these files can tell.  

And then, there is the antisemitism. This from the Weekly Intelligence Review, week ending 21(?) 

January 1942:37 

 

Antisemitism within official British documents 

ΨhƭŘ WŜǿƛǎƘ ǘǊŀƛǘǎΩ. Suarez ŘƛŘƴΩǘ Ƨǳǎǘ Ƴƛǎǎ ǘƘŜ ŀƴǘƛǎŜƳƛǘƛǎƳΣ ƘŜ ŘƻŜǎƴΩǘ ǎŜŜƳ ǘƻ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǎŜ ƛǘ ŀƴŘ 

feeds off it, making accusations constructed from conclusions built on this type of antisemitic 

mentality. Suarez reports this specific attack in Tel Aviv (20 January) on page 73. 

This from a situation report, 22/7/1940.38 

 

! ΨWŜǿƛǎƘ ǘŜƴŘŜƴŎȅ ǘƻ ŘƛǎǎŜƴǎƛƻƴΩ 

 

                                                             
37 WO 169 /4334 
38 WO 169/148 
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Or this, when discussing a British Jewish member of the House of Lords. From a report of a meeting 

with Sir W Battershill:39 

 

Ψ¦nfortunate that secret file should be shown to so prominent a JewΩ 

Which leads to these types of statement (from the same report, dated 16 April 1943): 

 

ΨΧthoroughly tricked by JewsΩ 

This report goes on to suggest Colonel ¢ŜŀƎǳŜ ƛǎ Ψfairly confident that an incident would be staged by 

ǘƘŜ WŜǿǎΣ ǎƻ ŀǊǊŀƴƎŜŘ ŀǎ ǘƻ ŜƴǎǳǊŜ ǘƘŜ !Ǌŀōǎ ŦƛǊŜŘ ǘƘŜ ŦƛǊǎǘ ǎƘƻǘΩ. Everything becomes possible within 

this mindset. This is commentary, and in places antisemitism drips from the pages. Suarez feeds off 

this commentary as his writes his book, oblivious (or sympathetic) to the racist mindset that formed 

some of it. 

Interestingly, when discussing the Struma40 and Patria (page 82), Suarez once again uses the 

opportunity to suggest Zionists did not care about the Jews in Europe: άZionist officials sent not a 

single emissary to the Ghettos of PolandέΦ 

Lǘ ƛǎƴΩǘ ŎƭŜŀǊ Ƙƻǿ Suarez envisaged Ψ½ƛƻƴƛǎǘ ƻŦŦƛŎƛŀƭǎΩ could freely enter Poland in 1942, but the file 

with the reports on the Struma (WO 169/4334) also contains this:41 

 

Endeavours of Jews in Palestine 

                                                             
39 FO 1093/330 
40 The Struma was a ship trying to take several hundred Jewish refugees from Axis-allied Romania to Palestine. 
It was torpedoed by a Soviet submarine on 24 February 1942, 15 months after the Patria disaster 
41 From Weekly Intelligence Review number 14, 25/2/1942 WO 169/4334 
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 SuarezΩǎ ability to ignore the parts of the files that disprove his own writing is unceasing. Take the 

comments on page 66 that belittle the Jewish war effort. Suarez spends much time suggesting the 

Jews did not fully contribute to the war effort. He cites file WO 169/148 (page 66 and endnote 

#117). Then on page 77 he mentions that Ψabout 9000 Palestinian ArabǎΩ had enlisted with Allied 

forces, again stressing that the Zionist leadersΩ determination ΨƘŀƳǇŜǊŜŘΩ the Yishuv recruitment 

effort. He points out that the Jewish Agency maintained opposition even though November 1942 

brought Ψnews of the death campsΩ. This time he references (endnote #139) WO 169/4334, the same 

file that ŎƻƴǘŀƛƴŜŘ ǘƘŜ Ψold Jewish traitΩ reference. 

We failed to verify much of what Suarez had written.  Endnote #139 sources the information from 

Weekly Intelligence Review number 42 for week ending 25 November 19 42; summary number 14. 

Except the summary reports appear to be monthly reports, not weekly and summary 14 is 

December, not November. ²Ŝ ŎƻǳƭŘ ƴƻǘ ŦƛƴŘ ƳŜƴǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ Ψфллл !ǊŀōǎΩ in either of these documents 

(however we acknowledge the figure is genuine). Nor that the Jewish Agency desire for a Jewish 

army was hampering the attempt to recruit men from the Jewish population (the Yishuv) to support 

ǘƘŜ !ƭƭƛŜǎΩ ²ŀǊ ŜŦŦƻǊǘΦ  On the contrary - in the WO 169/148 file are several positive updates 

regarding Jewish recruitment. For example (22 July 1940): 

ΨThere has been a good an even enthusiastic response from the Jews to the recent call for recruits 

both for the army and R.A.F., and it is believed that a good type of man has been obtained. The Arabs 

on the other hand have shown little enthusiasm for general service in the British Army, but there is a 

growing desire for the enrolment of Arab units for local defence.Ω 

 

Enthusiastic response to recruitment 

¢ƘŜ ŘŜƳƻƭƛǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ {ǳŀǊŜȊΩǎ ŀǊƎǳƳŜƴǘ ŘƻŜǎ ƴƻǘ ǊŜƭȅ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ŀǊŎƘƛǾŜΦ  History has recorded accurately 
the Jewish contribution to the war effort. Which raises the question of why Suarez tries so hard to 
convey that the Jewish war effort was minimal but assiduously overstates the Arab contribution. In 
truth, 136,000 Palestinian Jews volunteered for service with the British Army42. That is 15 times the 
total number of Arabs - from a population just half the size, or 30:1. It is absurd to compare them. 
 
So Suarez has written something obviously wrong, purely to reinforce the calumny that Jews had 
more important things to do than fight Hitler. Suarez suggests that the Zionists went on a campaign 
to stop Jews from volunteering. Which creates another problem. Because the number of Jewish 
volunteers was so high (almost all eligible Jews volunteered), it means either that 'Zionist leaders' 
had absolutely no control over any segment of the population, or that 'Zionist leaders' never 

                                                             

42 Mark Tessler, A History of the Israeli-Palestinian Conflict (page 249)   
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embarked on such a campaign. Either way, this exposes another collapse of internal integrity within 
the narrative from Suarez's book. 

Suarez has ignored several positive messages in one file, to take one negative one and slightly distort 
ƛǘΦ {ǳŀǊŜȊ ǿŀƴǘǎ ǘƻ ŎƻƴǾŜȅ ǘƘŜ ǿƘƻƭƭȅ ŀƘƛǎǘƻǊƛŎ ƳŜǎǎŀƎŜ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ WŜǿǎ ƛƴ tŀƭŜǎǘƛƴŜ ŘƛŘƴΩǘ ŎŀǊŜ ŀōƻǳǘ 
their family members who were being murdered by the Nazi menace. He also wants to pretend that 
collusion exists (a meeting of ideological minds) between Zionists and Nazis. This as the Nazis 
destroyed European Jewry. 

This simply highlights how Suarez appears to choose the elements of a file when it suits him, whilst 

ignoring those parts that entirely contradict the point he wishes to make. Quality research this is 

not.  

Another of SuarezΩǎ central pillars can now be addressed (Pillar #9, see page 4 above). One of the 

main problems he faces in constructing his false narrative is that for the most part, violent Zionist 

activity was both defensive and restricted to extreme elements. The Hagana was created to defend 

against Arab violence. Like any community, the Jews in Palestine had extremists. The archive files are 

full of material across the political spectrum - from British wariness of the Jewish communists, to 

their όŀƴŘ ŀǘ ǘƛƳŜǎ ǘƘŜ IŀƎŀƴŀΩǎύ open warfare with Jewish right-wing extremists. 

But that extremism was limited and it was still for the most part in reaction to events on the ground 

ς reactive not proactive.  As Arab violence exploded and Jewish refugees were trapped in a 

European continent that was to prove their graveyard, fringe groups (the Irgun and Stern) turned 

violent.  Some of that violence (principally Stern violence), was directed towards Jews. 

But it does not suit SuarezΩǎ ƴŀǊǊŀǘƛǾŜ ǘƻ ǎƛƳǇƭȅ ǎŀȅ ǘƘŀǘ Zionism had a violent fringe.  He needs to tar 

mainstream Zionism with this brush, by maintaining that these fringe groups were doing the work of 

the Hagana and the Jewish Agency. It is a constant Suarez refrain throughout the 1936-1947 period, 

at which point civil war overtook the landscape. An example from the book (page 74, on the events 

of 1942): 

άAt which point the goals of the Revisionists were now those of mainstream Zionismέ  

To highlight how desperate is SuarezΩǎ attempt to smear the Zionist leadership with the same brush 

as the extremists, we now present another fraudulent quote, which Suarez appears to have 

misinterpreted to precisely invert its meaning.  

In the later years of the Mandate, Teddy Kollek (Mayor of Jerusalem from 1965 to 1993) reported to 

the British on terrorist activity. His interviews are detailed in several files (eg KV 5/29 and KV 5/34). 

Suarez paints Kollek aǎ ŀƴ ΨƛƴŦƻǊƳŀƴǘΩΣ ǘŜƭƭƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ .ritish about the Hagana, Irgun and Stern secretly 

cooperating. In fact, YƻƭƭŜƪΩǎ ŀŎǘƛǾƛǘȅ ǿŀǎ apparently ǇŀǊǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ IŀƎŀƴŀΩǎ ŎƭŀƳǇdown on the Irgun. 

Kollek was used to pass information to the British. The British could then act against the Irgun. 
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Rather than show collusion between the Hagana and Irgun, Kollek highlights how the British and 

Hagana worked together to fight the violence that the Zionist leadership opposed.43  

Suarez clearly knows nothing of this, and suggests: 

ΨKƻƭƭŜƪ ŎƻƴŦƛǊƳŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ ½ƛƻƴƛǎǘ ŜǎǘŀōƭƛǎƘƳŜƴǘΩǎ ŘƛǎŀǾƻǿŀƭ ƻŦ ǘŜǊǊƻǊ ǿŀǎ ŎƘƻǊŜƻƎǊŀǇƘŜŘΥ ŀŎŎƻǊŘƛƴƎ 

to Kollek the Hagana and Irgun would agree on a particular terror attack, the Irgun would carry it 

out, and the Jewish agency would then publicly condemn itΦΩ 

Which is absurd considering Kollek is apparently a Jewish Agency / British go-between. The source 

for this statement (page 106) in endnote #202 is an extract from an interview (interview number 8) 

with Kollek.44 From the interview: 

Ψ¢ƘŜǊŜ ǿŀǎΣ ƘŜ ǎŀƛŘΣ ƴƻ question of the Irgun and Stern as organisations being controlled by, or 

ǿƻǊƪƛƴƎ ǿƛǘƘ IŀƎŀƴŀΩ and that ΨIŀƎŀƴŀ ƘŀŘ ōŜŜƴ ǘǊȅƛƴƎ ƘŀǊŘ ǘƻ ƎŜǘ ǘƘŜ LǊƎǳƴ ǘƻ ōǊŜŀƪ ǳǇΩ 

Given the level of distortion, we feel it necessary to reproduce the entire extract: 

 

Kollek is clearly distancing the Hagana from both the Irgun and Stern. Where is the secret 

collusion? 

                                                             
43 For indication of type of work Kollek was doing for the Jewish Agency 
http://www.jewishvirtuallibrary.org/the-ldquo-hunting-season-rdquo 
44 KV 5/29 Interview ref DSO/P13576 






















































